SellerDeck Business Plus Version

Installation Guide





Under the copyright laws, neither the documentation nor the software may be copied, photocopied, reproduced, translated, or reduced to any electronic medium or machine-readable form, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of SellerDeck Ltd.

'SellerDeck', 'SellerDeck Catalog', 'SellerDeck Catalog Client', 'SellerDeck Designer, 'SellerDeck Business', 'SellerDeck BP' and 'SellerDeck BP Client, SellerDeck EPOS, and SellerDeck Link' ' are registered trademarks of SellerDeck Software Ltd.

Other parties' trademarks or service marks are the property of their respective owners and should be treated as such.

Note: This guide covers SellerDeck 2013 created by SellerDeck. All the screen shots are taken from SellerDeck SD 2013.

+44 (0)845 129 4848

Contents

Introduction	1
Overview	
System Requirements	1
Hardware Requirements	1
Network Requirements	2
Operating System and Environment	2

Installation Process

3

Planning your Installation	
Installing on the BP Machine	4
Adding Users	10
Installation on Subsequent BP User Machines	11
Notes On Upgrading A Business Plus	14

Appendices

15

How to Share Folders and Set Permissions	15
Windows XP – Using Simple File Sharing	15
Windows XP - Advanced File Sharing	
Sharing Under Windows Vista	
More Information on Sharing	24
Important Notes for Workgroups	
Windows Firewall Settings	
Windows XP and Vista	
Windows 7	
Troubleshooting	
0	

Introduction

Overview

This document contains the instructions required to install SellerDeck Business Plus on your network. SellerDeck Business Plus Version will now be referred to as 'BP 2013' throughout the remainder of the guide.

This guide details the setup and configuration of your LAN for the operation of Business Plus. See Appendices for details on shared drive setup.

A troubleshooting section is provided in the Appendices.

More information on the operation of Business Plus can be located by going to 'Help | Help Topics | Index' and looking up 'Multi User Order Processing' in SellerDeck.

System Requirements

Hardware Requirements

Vendor PC

Windows XP (service pack 2), Vista or Windows 7

1GB RAM (2GB for Vista and Windows 7)

Minimum 1 GHz processor recommended (2 GHz or faster for sites with over 5000 products)

Internet Explorer 6 or higher

120MB available hard disk space

65536 colour display recommended

Web site

Windows, UNIX, or Linux Server

Perl 5.004 or later (MD5 Perl module recommended; Perl 5.10.0 is not supported)

User-writable CGI bin

Min. 20MB process memory recommended

Network Requirements

100 MBP 2013s or greater Local Area Network. Not recommended for use on a Virtual Private Network (VPN) or wireless solutions.

BP 2013 requires access to a shared database. This database must be located on a shared drive that has 'Full Control' permissions available to all installations of BP 2013 on the network. Please see the Appendices later in this document for more details on setting permissions.

Operating System and Environment

Windows XP Professional (service pack 2 and above) or Home using either FAT32 or NTFS filesystem. Windows Vista (Business and Ultimate) and XP Professional editions allow 9 concurrent users to access MultiUser, while Vista Home edition and XP Home edition there is a limit of 4 concurrent users. Windows 7 Professional and Ultimate editions allow up to 20 concurrent users. Administrative access to the PC is required for all installations and operation of BP 2013. Internet access. Internet Explorer v6 (and higher).

Each installation of BP 2013 requires a separate licence key. Contact SellerDeck Sales for additional keys.

Installation Process

Planning your Installation

When you have purchased a copy of BP 2013 for use in a MultiUser environment, you will be provided with two different types of licence key – a BP 2013 key and BP 2013 User keys. The number of BP 2013 User keys you are provided with depends on how many additional users you have purchased.

BP 2013 also comes supplied with an RTS key for Real Time Stock synchronisation. This will be covered later in the guide.

The first machine you setup should be the one you will use most of the time, and will be licensed as the BP 2013 machine. Subsequent machines that are used to connect to the shared site data will be licensed as BP 2013 User machines.

If you use SellerDeck Link, SellerDeck Link must be installed on the same machine as both an installation of BP 2013, and the database. Sage link can be located on another machine, so long as this other machine is on the same network as BP 2013. Only install Link on one machine.

During installation, you will be given the choice between 'Upgrade Previous version site's by a tick box – an 'Upgrade Installation' or if the tick box is left un checked this will do a full 'Clean Installation' of SellerDeck 2013 running side by side with any previous versions of SellerDeck.

You need to carry out a 'Clean Installation' if you want to create a brand new SellerDeck BP 2013 Multi User Site, or you want to install BP 2013, and then subsequently import a snapshot containing an existing SellerDeck site.

You need to carry out an 'Upgrade Installation' if you have a SellerDeck site on your PC which you want to upgrade whilst you are installing SellerDeck BP 2013.

Installing on the BP 2013 Machine

To initiate the installation on your PC, do the following:

- 1. Make sure all versions of SellerDeck are closed prior to starting the installation.
- 2. Start the SellerDeck 'setup.exe' installation wizard. This can be found either on the CD if one has been supplied or from the download via our website http://www.SellerDeck.co.uk/index.php/support/category/ecommerce-software
- 3. It is recommended you read the 'Licence Agreement' and 'Data Protection' statements before agreeing to them. Please tick "I Agree" then click "Next".



4. You will have the choice to either 'Upgrade previous version sites", "install payment services providers" or "Install link for sage". If you leave "Uppgrade previous version sites" un ticked then SellerDeck 2013 will just be installed side by side with your previous SellerDeck version (this is the recommended option).



5. If "SellerDeck Link for Sage Line 50', is required, check the relevant checkbox "Install Link for Sage", then click 'Continue' If SellerDeck Link is being installed, it should be installed on the machine that will have the BP 2013 shared database on.



6. BP 2013 will prompt you with the option to tick or un tick 'Upgrade previous version sites' if you leave this tick box un ticked then SellerDeck will do a clean install of SellerDeck 2013 (recommended option) or if you tick this option then it will upgrade your previous sites and version of

SellerDeck.

G SellerDeck	Please choose which type of installation is required. The selected option will be further described in the next screen. Select the Next button to proceed.
	Install SellerDeck 2013
	<u>N</u> ext >

7. You will now see a message saying that the option you selected will create a new installation of SellerDeck 2013 and if there are any previous versions in the machine they will not be affected and will continue to work as normal. Click "Next"



8. Next, you can choose where to install your SellerDeck 2013 installation or you can leave it as the default location specified (this is the recommended option).

🖉 SellerDeck	installed, or click the Browse button to choose an one of the second sec	existing directory or enter a
	This window will be re-displayed if the installation d existing installation directory.	irectory conflicts with an
	C:\Program Files\SellerDeck 2013	Browse

9. If an 'Upgrade Installation' has been selected, you will be required to select the site(s) that you wish to upgrade. When done click 'Next>'. If you are doing a 'Clean

Installation', skip to point **Error! Reference source not found.**

- 10. If you have more than one site, BP 2013 will prompt you to select a primary site. This is the site that will be active the first time BP 2013 is started. Make your selection and click 'Next>'.
- 11. Next, you can choose where you would like to have your 'Sites' directory. This is the directory where your individual 'Site' folders will be stored (this includes all site information and databases etc)



- 12. Once the main part of the installation has completed, BP 2013 may prompt you to install the PSP and/or SSL components, choose 'Install Now' when prompted.
- 13. Please enter the registered user's full name and registered user's company name then click "Next".

G SellerDeck	Please enter the name and company of the registered user of this copy of SellerDeck 2013. The installation will not continue without this information.
	Registered user's full name: Simon Bush Registered user's company name:
	Microsoft <back next=""> Cancel</back>

14. If you wish to use Dreamweaver to create your own designs for SellerDeck, the Dreamweaver Extension should be installed when prompted. SellerDeck recommend that the extension is only installed on the 'BP 2013' machine. Also make sure that any images that are used in the external design are saved into the root of your site, e.g. 'Site1' folder.



15. Please check the information you have put in then click install now.



16. You will see the installing box appear and once at 100% will be complete.

[Installing	×
	Copying file: C:\Program Files\SellerDeck 2013\crpe32.dll	
l	17%	
	Cancel	

17. You will now see the SellerDeck 2013 installation completed window. You click check the "read the release notes check box if you wish (this will show you what has been changed in SellerDeck 2013. Then click the "Finish" button to finish the installation.



Important note for firewall users: If you receive a warning from your firewall stating that Catalog.exe is attempting to access the Internet, or Catalog.exe is behaving as a server, please allow it. Most firewalls have a 'Remember this setting' feature, select it. Failure to do this will result in continuous security warnings whilst using BP 2013.

Please also check that you have enabled/opened ports within your firewall settings (please see the port list as numbers will be different depending on the version of SellerDeck you are running). Go to 'Control Panel | Windows Firewall | Exceptions | Add port' to do this. For other firewall applications please consult your vendors' documentation on how to do this.

18. If an 'Upgrade Installation' has been run, the 'Site Upgrader' will start. If you are not doing an upgrade you will now be presented with the 'Please Log On' window.

To login for the first time, leave the 'User Name' as 'Administrator' and enter the password as 'Administrator'.

19. BP 2013 will now start. The first screen you should see after entering the authorisation key will ask you if you would like to share the site data now, or later:

ľ	Business Plus
	Do you want to set up SellerDeck to share site data between multiple users now?
	Not now
c	$\hfill \ensuremath{\boxdot}$ I would like to set up this site to be shared with other users
r	ОК

20. If you choose to set up sharing later, all you need to do when you are ready to share the data is go to 'File | Multi User Options | Share this sites data' in SellerDeck.

Adding Users

It is recommended that the users are setup at this stage by going to the 'Settings | Users' menu.

To install BP 2013 on subsequent machines on your network, see Installation on Subsequent BP 2013 User Machines on page 8.

Installation on Subsequent BP 2013 User Machines

This section details how to install the machines that will connect to the shared data. These will be referred to as the BP 2013 User machines – or BP 2013U.

Make sure all versions of SellerDeck are closed before commencing the installation.

To initiate the installation on your PC, do the following:

 Start the SellerDeck 'setup.exe' installation wizard. This can be found either on the CD if one has been supplied or from the download via our website <u>http://www.SellerDeck.co.uk/index.php/support/cate</u> gory/ecommerce-software.

Please note: Business and BP 2013 use the same installation files and procedure. It is just your authorisation key that determines which 'version' you have.

- 2. You will have the choice to either run a 'Custom Install' or a 'Standard Install'. A 'Standard Install' is recommended. The 'Custom Install' allows the removal of certain components from the installation. You must install the same set of components on each installation of BP 2013 on each machine.
- 3. Say no to install SellerDeck Link for SellerDeck Link , as this should be installed on the main BP 2013 machine.



4. BP 2013 will prompt you with the options to either 'Upgrade previous sites', if you have a previous version of SellerDeck, it will provide you with the option to upgrade. If you do not select this then the full installation of SellerDeck 2013 will be installed side by side with your previous versions. Click 'Continue'. 5. You can choose a location to install SellerDeck to by clicking 'Browse', or you can accept the default. This is not the shared part of the application and should be installed on the drive of the local machine. It is recommended to stick to the default location at this point.

⊖ Seller	Deck	Click Next to accept the default directory where Selle installed, or click the Browse button to choose an exi new name as required.	erDeck 2013 is to be isting directory or enter a
		This window will be re-displayed if the installation dire existing installation directory.	ctory conflicts with an

- 6. You will be asked to enter your company details, do so.
- 7. Once the main part of the installation has completed, BP 2013 may prompt you to install the additional components, choose 'Install Now' when prompted. If you have run a 'Custom Install' and have not chosen to install the additional components, you will not see this part of the installation.
- 8. SellerDeck will prompt you to install the Dreamweaver Extension. It is not recommended for the extension to be installed on anything but the 'BP 2013 machine'.
- 9. Once BP 2013 User has been installed, and a valid licence key has been entered; you will be prompted to connect to an existing site.

Connect this copy of SellerDeck to an existing site 🔀	
This copy of SellerDeck can be connected to an existing site in order to use the shared site data there.	
Please locate the sites directory of the PC with Business Plus installed on it. This directory will need to have been shared on your network. Click the 'Browse' button' to locate it.	
C:\Documents and Settings\XPMUser\My Docum Browse	
Connect Cancel	

Browse to the shared 'Sites' directory and click 'Connect'.

10. The BP 2013 User machine will now connect to the SellerDeck Synchronisation Server running on the BP 2013 machine.

For Synchronisation Server errors please refer to the Troubleshooting section at the end of this document.

Important note for firewall users: If you receive a warning from your firewall stating that Catalog.exe is attempting to access the Internet, or Catalog.exe is behaving as a server, please allow it. Most firewalls have 'Remember this setting' feature, select it. Failure to do this will result in continuous security warnings whilst using BP 2013.

- 11. Wait a few moments, and then the login dialogue will appear. You can login as the default 'Administrator' user by entering a 'password' of 'Administrator', or you can login as a user that was created during the first installation of BP 2013.
- 12. Repeat the process from page 11 until the desired number of machines have received the Business Plus.
- 13. Once the 'sites' folder has been shared on the network, (see page 15 for information on how to achieve this), you will need to ensure that all the installations of BP 2013 are pointing at the same 'sites' folder. Go to 'File | Sites' then click the 'Sites Directory' button. See the 'Setting Up Multi Order Processing' in SellerDeck's built in help for more information.

Notes On Upgrading A Business Plus

If you have previously installed BP 2013 and wish to upgrade it, ie by installing a later version, please follow these instructions.

- 1. Warning, before starting an Upgrade, a snapshot must be taken.
- 2. Run the BP 2013 installer and choose 'Upgrade previous version sites' when prompted.
- 3. Make sure all users are logged out.
- 4. To carry out the procedure on the 'BP 2013' machines, Run the BP 2013 installer and choose 'Upgrade previous version sites' when prompted..
- 5. Once installed, start BP 2013, re-enter your licence key.

Appendices

How to Share Folders and Set Permissions

Depending on what operating system you use, and whether you are on a domain or not affects how folder shares are setup. This section details how to share folders within these different environments. We will use the SellerDeck's Shared Sites folder as an example, but could quite easily apply to any folder you wish to share.

Windows XP – Using Simple File Sharing

Simple File Sharing is enabled by default if you are not on a domain. It doesn't provide the flexibility of 'Advanced File Sharing' but is simpler to setup your share.

- 1. Locate the Sites Folder you wish to share in Windows Explorer, by default this is within 'My Documents\SellerDeck 2013'.
- 2. Right click on the 'Sites' folder and select 'Sharing and Security'. The 'Sites Properties' window will appear.



3. Tick 'Share this folder on the network', and also tick 'Allow network users to change my files'. You can change the 'Share name' to something more descriptive if you wish, when done click 'OK'.

eneral Sharing Custo	omize
Local shaling and sec	Gilden Marshart (d.)
only, drag it to	the <u>Shared Documents</u> folder.
To make this only you have	folder and its subfolders private so that access, select the following check box.
Make this	folder private
Network sharing and s	ecuritu
users of this c and type a sh	omputer, select the first check box below are name. folder on the network
Share name:	Sites
Allow netw	vork users to change my files
Learn more about shar	ing and security
Windows Firewall i with other compute	s configured to allow this folder to be sha ers on the network. Is Firewall settings

Note: If you are sharing a folder for the first time on this PC, it is likely that sharing will not be enabled. It is simple to tell as the 'Share this folder on the network' checkbox in the window above will be replaced with a 'Network Setup Wizard' link. You will need to click the link and make your way through the Wizard to enable sharing.

4. The 'Sites' folder should now have a small hand under it to indicate that it is now shared.



Windows XP – Advanced File Sharing

If you are connecting to a Domain, 'Simple File Sharing' will be disabled and cannot be enabled, so 'Advanced File Sharing' must be used. Whilst it is more complex to setup, it does give the benefit of choosing exactly who on your network has access to the share.

1. Locate the Sites Folder you wish to share in Windows Explorer, by default this is within 'My Documents\SellerDeck 2013'.

	Explore
Site	Open
	Search
	Sharing and Security
	Send To 🧏 🕨
	Cut
	Сору
	Create Shortcut
	Delete
	Rename
	Properties

2. Right click on the 'Sites' folder and select 'Sharing and Security'. The 'Sites Properties' window will appear.

3. Make sure the 'Sharing' tab is selected, and then select the 'Share this folder' radio button. You can enter a more descriptive 'Share Name' if you wish.

General Sharin	9 Security	Customize	
You c netwo folder.	an share this rk. To enabl	folder with other u e sharing for this f	isers on your older, click Share thi
🔿 Do not sh	are this folder		
💿 Share this	folder		
Share name:	Sites		
Comment:			
User limit:	💿 Maximu	um allowed	
	O Allow t	his number of user	S:
To set permis folder over the	sions for user e network, cli	s who access this ck Permissions.	Permissions
To configure Caching,	settings for ol	ifline access, click	Caching
Windows Firew with other com View your Win	vall is configu outers on the dows Firewall	red to allow this fo network. settings	lder to be shared

4. Click the 'Permissions' button, the 'Permissions' window will appear. By default this has the user 'Everyone' in it.

nare Permissions		
aroup or user names:		
	Add	Remove
Permissions for Everyone	Allow	Deny
Full Control Change Read		

Note: For security reasons, SellerDeck recommends the 'Everyone' user is removed and individual users or groups of users are added instead.

- 5. Highlight the 'Everyone' user and click 'Remove'. The 'Group or user names' box will now be empty.
- 6. Click the 'Add' button, the 'Select Users, Computers or Groups' window will appear.
- 7. If you know the name of the user or group you wish to add, type it into the 'Enter the object names to select' box. If you wish to add more than one user, separate them with a semicolon ';'. In the example below 'Domain Users' has been added meaning everyone who logs onto the domain can access the share. When done click 'OK'. If you do not know the name of the user and want

windows to help you find it, read point 8 below, else skip to point 9.

	? 🗙
	Object Types
	Locations
	Check Names
OK	Cancel

8. If you don't know the name of the user or group you wish to add, click the 'Advanced' button on the 'Select Users, Computers or Groups' Window, and then click 'Find Now'. You can then select the user(s) required. You can select multiple users by holding down the 'CTRL' key whilst left clicking the usernames. When done click 'OK'.

elect Users, Co	omputers, or Gr	oups		?
elect this object ty	ype:			
Users, Groups, or	Built-in security princ	ipals		Object Types
rom this location:				
domain.co.uk				Locations
-	-			
Common Queries				
Name: 9	Starts with 🐱			Columns
Description 9	Starts with 🐱			Find Now
Disabled and	e cu unito		2	Stop
Disabled act	counts			1 Contraction
Tuon estimat	1 bassword			1123
			ОК	. Cancel
lame (RDN)	E-Mail Address	Description	In Folder	1
Dhivya Malani			domain.co.uk/U	
7 Dialup				
DinsAdmins		DNS Administrat	domain.co.uk/U	
DnsUpdatePr		DNS clients who	domain.co.uk/U	÷.
Domain Admins		Designated admi	domain.co.uk/U	
Domain Comp		All workstations	domain.co.uk/U	3
Domain Contr		All domain contr	domain.co.uk/U	3
Domain Guests		All domain guests	domain.co.uk/U	
Domain Users		All domain users	domain.co.uk/U	
Enterprise Ad		Designated admi	domain.co.uk/U	
Enterprise Do				

9. The 'Permissions' window will reappear. Ensure 'Full Control', 'Change' and 'Read' are selected for each of your users or groups you wish to give access to. When done, click 'OK'.

🔮 Domain Users (DOMAIN\E)omain Users)	
	Add	Remove
ermissions for Domain Users	Allow	Deny
Full Control Change Read	N N N	

10. The 'Sites' folder should now have a small hand under it to indicate that it is now shared.



We now need to set the NFTS permissions to complete our share. This is very similar to the steps already carried out to add our shared user to the folder.

- 11. Right click again on the 'Sites' folder, and select 'Sharing and Security'.
- 12. Click on the 'Security' tab on the 'Permissions' window and click 'Add'. Again add the users required to the list in the same way you added users earlier.
- 13. Once they are added, select the user you wish to grant access rights to in the 'Group or user names' box, then make sure the following permissions are ticked:
 - Modify
 - Read & Execute
 - List Folder Contents
 - Read

ieneral Sha	aring Security (Customize	
Group or use	er names:		
🖸 Admini:	strator (TESTXPV	Administrator)	
👧 Admini	strators (TESTXP)	Administrators)	
🕵 Domair	n Users (DOMAIN'	(Domain Users)	
🕵 SYSTE	M		
		Add	Remove
Permissions	for Domain Users	Allow	Deny
Permissions Full Contro	for Domain Users ol	Allow	Deny
Permissions Full Contro Modify	for Domain Users ol		Deny
Permissions Full Contro Modify Read & E	for Domain Users ol xecute		Deny
Permissions Full Contro Modify Read & E List Folde	for Domain Users ol xecute r Contents		Deny
Permissions Full Contro Modify Read & E List Folde Read	for Domain Users ol xecute r Contents	Allow	
Permissions Full Contro Modify Read & E List Folde Read Write	for Domain Users ol xecute r Contents	Allow	Deny
Permissions Full Contro Modify Read & E List Folde Read Write Special P	for Domain Users ol xecute r Contents	Allow	

14. Repeat point 13 until you have granted permissions to the required users / groups.

Note: If you are using SellerDeck Enterprise, and the shared sites folder is not on the SQL Server Machine, you must enable the SQL Server Login User to have 'Full Control' of the shared folder, and 'Modify', 'Read', 'Write' and 'Execute' NTFS permissions.

Sharing Under Windows Vista and Windows 7

- 1. Locate the Sites Folder you wish to share in Windows Explorer, by default this is within 'My Documents\SellerDeck 2013'.
- 2. Right click on the 'Sites' folder and select 'Properties'.

Note: It is recommended to select 'Properties' rather than 'Share', as selecting 'Share' can take some time before the computer responds.



3. Click the 'Sharing' tab and then click the 'Advanced Sharing' button. If you have 'User Account Control' enabled you will need to click 'Continue' on the 'Windows needs permission to continue' dialogue.

General	Sharing	Security	Previous Versions	Customize	
		,			
Netwo	ork File and	Folder Sh	aring		
	Sites				
	Not Sh	ared			
Netw	ork Path				
Not S	hared				
S	hare				
Advar Set c advar	nced Sharir ustom perm nced sharir	ng nissions, cr ng options.	eate multiple shares,	and set other	r
Advar Set c advar	nced Sharir ustom perm nced sharir Advanced	ng nissions, cr ng options. d Sharing	reate multiple shares,	and set other	r
Advar Set c advar	nced Sharir ustom pem nced sharir Advanced	ng nissions, cr ng options. d Sharing	reate multiple shares,	and set other	r
Advar Set c advar	nced Sharir ustom perm nced sharir Advanced	ng nissions, cr ng options. d Sharing	eate multiple shares,	and set other	r
Advar Set c advar	nced Sharir ustom perm nced sharir Advanced	ng nissions, cr ng options. d Sharing	reate multiple shares,	and set other	r
Advar Set c advar	nced Sharir ustom perm nced sharir Advanced	ng nissions, cr ng options. d Sharing	reate multiple shares,	and set other	r
Advar Set c advar	nced Sharir ustom perm nced sharir	ng nissions, cr ng options. d Sharing	eate multiple shares,	and set other	r
Advar Set c advar	nced Sharir ustom perm nced sharir I) Advance	ng nissions, cr ng options. d Sharing	eate multiple shares,	and set other	Ċ
Advar Set c advar	nced Sharir ustom perm nced sharir Advancer	ng nissions, cr ng options. d Sharing	eate multiple shares,	and set other	r

4. Tick the 'Share this folder' checkbox. You can add a more descriptive 'Share Name' if you wish.

ettings Share name:			
Add Limit the numbe Comments:	Remove r of simultaneous	users to:	10
		7	

5. Click 'Permissions, the 'Permissions' window will appear.

Note: For security reasons, SellerDeck recommends the 'Everyone' user is removed and individual users, or groups of users are added instead.

- 6. Highlight the 'Everyone' user and click 'Remove'. The 'Group or Usernames' box will now be empty.
- 7. Click the 'Add' button, the 'Select Users, Computers or Groups' window will appear.
- 8. If you know the name of the user or group you wish to add, type it into the 'Enter the object names to select' box. If you wish to add more than one user, separate them with a semicolon ';'. In the example below 'Domain Users' has been added meaning everyone who logs onto the domain can access the share. When done click 'OK'. If you do not know the name of the user and want windows to help you find it, read point 9 below, else skip to point 10.

Select this object type:		
Users, Groups, or Built-in s	ecurity principals	Object Types
From this location:		
domain.co.uk		Locations
domain.co.uk Enter the object names to s	select (<u>examples</u>):	Locations
domain.co.uk Enter the object names to s Domain Users	select (<u>examples</u>):	Locations Check Names
domain.co.uk Enter the object names to s Domain Users	select (<u>examples</u>):	Locations Check Names

9. If you don't know the name of the user or group you wish to add, click the 'Advanced' button on the 'Select Users, Computers or Groups' Window, and then click 'Find Now'. You can then select the user(s) required. You can select multiple users by holding down the 'CTRL' key whilst left clicking the usernames. When done click 'OK', and then click 'OK' again.

elect Users, Corr	puters, or Groups			? <mark>×</mark>
Select this object	type:			
Users, Groups, or	r Built-in security princ	cipals	Ot	oject Types
From this location	:			
domain.co.uk				Locations
Common Querie	s			
Name:	Starts with 💌			Columns
Description:	Starts with 💌			Find Now
Disabled a	counte			Stop
Non evoirin	coodinia a password			
	ig password			-
Days since las	t logon: 🛛 💌	*		Par
Search results:			ОК	Cancel
Name (RDN)	E-Mail Address	Description	In Folder	•
Comain Admine	s	Designated admi	domain.co.uk/U	
🐮 Domain Comp.		All workstations	domain.co.uk/U	
Domain Contr		All domain contr	domain.co.uk/U	
🐮 Domain Guests	3	All domain guests	domain.co.uk/U	
Domain Users		All domain users	domain.co.uk/U	
🐮 Enterprise Ad		Designated admi	domain.co.uk/U	
ENTERPRIS				
🛃 Enterprise Te			domain.co.uk/U	
Eric Genevier			domain.co.uk/U	
Everyone				-
• ^ •			1 1 1 1 1 1	ESS3

- 10. The 'Permissions' window will reappear. Ensure 'Full Control', 'Change' and 'Read' are selected for each of your users or groups you wish to give access to. When done, click 'OK', click 'OK' again on the 'Advanced Sharing' window, then click 'Close'.
- 11. The sites folder should now have a small icon with two heads on it to show it is shared.



roup or user names: & Domain Users (DOMAIN\D	omain Users)	
& Domain Users (DOMAIN∖D	omain Users)	
	Add	Remove
armissions for Domain Llears	Allow	Denv
		Deny
Full Control		
Read		
11660		
Read	V	

12. The 'Sites' folder should now have a small hand under it to indicate that it is now shared.



We now need to set the NFTS permissions to complete our share. This is very similar to the steps already carried out to add our shared user to the folder.

- 13. Right click again on the 'Sites' folder, and select 'Properties'.
- 14. Click on the 'Security' tab on the 'Permissions' window and click 'Edit'. Again add the users required to the list.
- 15. Once they are added, select the user you wish to grant access rights to in the 'Group or user names' box, then make sure the following permissions are ticked:
 - Modify
 - Read & Execute
 - List Folder Contents
 - Read

Object name: C:\Users\Darren	Langley\Documen	ts\Actinic v9\
Group or user names:		
SYSTEM		
🚴 Darren Langley (DazVistaVirtu	ual\Darren Langley)
Administrators (DazVistaVirtua	al VAdministrators)	
Res Domain Users (DOMAIN\Dor	main Users)	
	155 - 87.5	-
	Add	Remove
Permissions for Domain Users	Allow	Deny
Permissions for Domain Users Full control	Allow	Deny
Permissions for Domain Users Full control Modify	Allow	Deny
Permissions for Domain Users Full control Modify Read & execute	Allow	Deny
Permissions for Domain Users Full control Modify Read & execute List folder contents		Deny
Permissions for Domain Users Full control Modify Read & execute List folder contents Read		Deny
Permissions for Domain Users Full control Modify Read & execute List folder contents Read	Allow	Deny

16. Repeat point 15 until you have granted permissions to the required users / groups.

Note: If you are using SellerDeck Enterprise, and the shared sites folder is not on the SQL Server Machine, you must enable the SQL Server Login User to have 'Full Control' of the shared folder, and 'Modify', 'Read', 'Write' and 'Execute' NTFS permissions.

More Information on Sharing

More information on folder sharing can be found in the following Microsoft Knowledge Base article:

http://support.microsoft.com/kb/304040

Important Notes for Workgroups

If your network is a workgroup, and you wish to only grant permissions to individual users, rather than a built user such as the 'everyone' user, you will need to make sure all users have access to the shared drive. To do this:

> Go to the machine that contains the share, then go to the 'Start' menu, select 'Control Panel'. Open 'Administrative Tools', and then open 'Computer Management'. Expand 'System Tools', then 'Local Users and Groups'.



- 2. Right click on the 'Users' folder and select 'New User'. Enter the same 'Username' and 'Password' This username and password must be the same as the username and password on the computer that will be connecting to the share.
- 3. Repeat point 2 until the required number of users are added.

Windows Firewall Settings

Since Windows XP, Microsoft have included a firewall built into the OS. Windows XP and Windows Vista use the same interfaces but Windows 7 is a bit different.

Windows XP and Vista

1. Go to 'Control Panel | Windows Firewall | Exceptions'.

Windows Firewall			
ieneral Exceptions	Advanced		
Windows Firewall is to from outside sources s General tab and selec Programs and Service	rned off. Your comp :uch as the Internet. t On. s:	uteris at risk of atta We recommend tha	cks and intrusions at you click the
Name			
4371			
✓ 4372			
Apache HTTP S	erver		
Apache HTTP S	erver		
Apache HTTP S	erver		
🗹 Bonjour			
Catalog - Interne	Sales Application		
Catalog - Interne	Sales Application		
File and Printer S	haring		
🗹 mysqld			
🗹 mysqld			•
Add Program	Add Port	Edit	Delete
	1 52 1 1		
 Display a notificati 	on when windows i	-irewali biocks a pro	gram
and as a constant			
What are the risks of .	allowing exceptions	2	
		OK	Cancel

- 2. You need to ensure that SellerDeck is in the 'Programs and Services' list. It often appears as 'Catalog – Internet Sales Application'. If it is not in the list, click 'Add Program' to add it.
- 3. You also need to make sure that Ports 54377 & 54378 are open. To do this, click the 'Add Port' button.

mber and proto ant to use.	col, consult the documentation for the pr	ogram or service
<u>N</u> ame:		
Port number:		

Name and number the ports accordingly (54377 & 54378).

4. Once you have added the exceptions and the ports, Close the Windows Firewall.

Windows 7

1. Go to 'Control Panel | Windows Firewall' and choose 'Allow a program or feature through Windows Firewall' on the left side.



2. To add SellerDeck to the exceptions list click 'Allow another Program'.

Domain	Home/Work (Private)	Public ^
•		
	Details	Remove
	Allow anothe	r p <u>r</u> ogram
	Domain V U U U U U U U	Domain Home/Work (Private)

 Once you have pressed ok, you will be taken back to the first screen. Now you need to open the ports. In Windows 7 you need to first click on 'Advanced Setting' on the left.

- 🔲 🛛 🕅				
Windows Firewall with Advance	/indows Firewall with Advanced Security on Local Computer	Actions		
📖 Inbound Rules		~ N	Windows Firewall with Advanced S	
Connection Security Rules	Windows Flewail with Advanced Security provides network security for Windows computers. Overview Domain Folle is Active Windows Fiewail a di.		Import Policy Export Policy	
			Restore Default Policy	
			Diagnose / Repair	
	Private Profile	l la	Refrech	
	Windows Firewall is off		Deneration	
	Public Profile		Propercies	
	Wedner Frauel in df	111	eip Heip	
	Windows Firewall Properties			
	Getting Started			
	Authenticate communications between computers	=		
	Create connection security rules to specify how and when connections between computers are authenticated and protected by using Internet Protocol security (IPsec).			
	Connection Security Rules			
	View and create firewall rules			
	Deate firewall rules to allow or block connections to specified programs or ports. You can also allow a connection only if it is authenticated, or if it comes from an authorized user, group, or computer. By default, intound connections are blocked unless they match a rule that allows them, and outbound connections are allowed unless they match a rule that blocks them.			
	Inbound Rules			
	Outbound Rules			
	View current firewall and IPsec policy and activity			
	View information about currently applied firewall and connection security rules and security associations for active network connections.			
		-		

4. Now click 'Inbound Rules' on the left and then 'New Rule...' on the right. Select 'Port' and press next. Now select 'Specific local ports:' and enter 54377 & 54378. Then press next and select 'Allow the connection'. Repeat this step for port number 54377 & 54378

Windows Firewall with	n Advance Inbound Rules					Actions		_		
Inbound Rules Outbound Rules	Name	Group	Profile	Profile Enabled Action		Inbound	Rules			
👫 Connection Security Ru	ity Rules 🛛 🔮 4371		Ali	All Yes Allow		🚉 New Rule				
🛃 Monitoring	4372		All	Yes	Allow E	T Filter	by Profile			
1	🔐 New Inbound Rule Wizan	1				×	State			
	Protocol and Ports	ol and Ports					Group			
	Specify the protocols and ports	to which this rule applies.								
S	Steps:	Description of a scale to TCD as LIDPO				.ist				
	 Rule Type 		Does this rule apply to TCP or UDP?							
	Protocol and Ports	© ПОЬ ◎ ТСЬ								
	Drofile									
	a Name									
		Does this rule apply to all local ports or specific local ports?								
		All local ports								
		Specific local ports:	4371 Example: 80, 443, 5000-5010							
		Learn more about protocol and ports								

- 5. Now do the same as above for 'Outbound Rules'
- 6. Your Windows Firewall is now setup.

Port Numbers for SellerDeck 2013 and previous versions

V9 (4372 & 4371) V10 (4373 & 4374) V11

(54375 & 54376)

V12 (54377 & 54378)

These port numbers must be used in the outbound and inbound rules

Troubleshooting

Problem:

Unable to locate selected database.

Resolution:

Make sure the network share is still connected. Open 'Windows Explorer' and make sure you can access the shared drive.

Check that access to BP 2013 is not blocked by a firewall. If prompted by a firewall to 'Allow Catalog access to the Internet', (or words to that affect), allow it and choose the 'Remember Me' function.

Problem

Unable to connect to Synchronisation Server.

Solution

This error appears if the SellerDeck Synchronisation Server is not running on the BP 2013 machine.

Go to 'Start | Run' and type 'Services.msc'

This will open the Services running in Windows. Find 'SellerDeck Synchronisation Server' and restart it. If it is not in the list, please ensure that SellerDeck BP 2013 is set to share site data (see How to Share Folders and Set Permissions)

Please also check that the IP address of the Sync Server is correct. To do this, in SellerDeck, go to 'Settings | Synchronisation Server'

Also check the ports 54377 & 54378 are open on all machines within your SellerDeck Business Plus.

It is also worth checking with the customer if they are on a wireless network. Wireless frequently drops out and can cause sync server connection problems. Suggest they connect to the network via a cable and re-test.

Problem

Cannot find shared sites folder or no site data found

Solution

This can happen if the 'Sites' folder has not been shared properly on the BP 2013 machine (see How to Share Folders and Set Permissions) or the BP 2013U machine is attempting to connect to the wrong Sites folder.

Please ensure the permissions are set correctly and that you have mapped the Sites folder as a network drive on the BP 2013U machine.

Please also ensure you are connecting to the correct Sites folder and there is Site data in there.

If running Windows Vista, please turn off UAC (User Account Control) from the control panel.

Please check that ALL sites are set to share the site data. If you haven't, you may find that BP 2013U is attempting to connect to the site that isn't shared, therefore not finding any sites to connect to.

Problem:

Users being logged out and BP 2013 not correctly displaying orders being edited on each machine under the 'User' tab in the 'Orders' screen.

Solution:

Ensure all machines on the network are either all assigned to use the network DHCP server or are manually assigned IP addresses. A mixture of the two will cause problems.

This problem can also be caused if the PC has a simultaneous wireless and cable network connection.

Problem:

My upload takes a long time and the automatic preview is slow

Solution:

SellerDeck recommends that the machine that is used most heavily for uploading and downloading holds the BP 2013 database. Running the database across the network when uploading, particularly with a large site, will affect performance. Also try switching off the automatic preview.

Problem

The site uploads in full each time I upload from a different machine.

Solution

This is because 'Compact HTML\CGI' is unticked under 'Design | Options | Miscellaneous' Login to each Business Plus as an administrator and uncheck the box.

Problem

Why if 2 or more administrators are logged in at the same time, only one can perform Catalog maintenance, i.e. adding products.

Solution:

SellerDeck is working as designed; only one administrator can have administrative rights at any one time. If another administrator logs in at the same time as another administrator, they will have order processing privileges only.

Problem

When starting BP 2013 on a remote machine, I get an error that reads:

'SellerDeck failed to open the database DSN=SellerDeckCatalog12.The database may be corrupt or the version may be newer than expected. This prevents SellerDeck working.'

Solution

This problem can occur because the database has become corrupted or because the permissions have become reset. To repair the database you will require 'Microsoft Access 2000, 2003 or 2007'. If you do not have one of these versions of Access, contact SellerDeck Technical Support. Under no circumstances must another version of Access be used.

Resetting permissions only:

- 1. Make sure all instances of BP 2013 are closed.
- 2. With Windows XP Pro right click on the 'SellerDeckCatalog.mdb', select 'Sharing and Security' then set the permissions accordingly. See page 15 for more information.
- 3. For Windows XP Home edition the database must be cut from the site folder, copied into the 'Shared Documents' area on the machine, then copy back to the site folder. It is imperative that SellerDeck is closed during this process, we also strongly recommend you make a backup of the database prior to cutting it.
- 4. Restart SellerDeck, if the problem persists then the database is probably corrupted. To repair it, follow the instructions below.

Repairing the database using Microsoft Access 2000/2003

- 1. Make sure all instances of BP 2013 are closed.
- 2. Open Access 2000.
- 3. Select 'Tools | Database Utilities | Compact And Repair Databases'.
- 4. Select the 'SellerDeckCatalog.mdb ' file from your shared Site folder.
- 5. Enter a new filename for the compacted database
- Once the database has been compacted, close Access, make a backup of the original 'SellerDeckCatalog.mdb' in the site folder and keep it safe, then delete the 'SellerDeckCatalog.mdb' from there.
- 7. Rename the file that was created in point 5 to 'SellerDeckCatalog.mdb'
- 8. Before starting SellerDeck, you will need to reset the permissions on the 'SellerDeckCatalog.mdb' as the compact and repair resets them to default. See the above instructions on Resetting permissions only.

Repairing the database using Microsoft Access 2007

- 1. Make sure all instances of BP 2013 are closed.
- 1. Backup your existing SellerDeckCatalog.mdb database (this will be in the site folder).

- 2. Open the SellerDeckCatalog.mdb database in Access 2007.
- 3. Click on the MS Office icon at the top left corner of the program. Go to 'Manage | Compact and repair database'.

Before starting SellerDeck, you will need to reset the permissions on the 'SellerDeckCatalog.mdb' as the compact and repair resets them to default. See the above instructions on Resetting permissions only.

Problem

It takes a long time for order reports to print

Solution

There may be a build up of old orders in the database, delete and purge the ones that are no longer required. Then compact the databases by going to 'Housekeeping | Compact Databases'.

Problem

SellerDeck hangs sometimes and becomes unresponsive, particularly if one of the users switches sites.

Solution

The upper limit of connections to the shared database may have been reached. The maximum number for Windows XP Home edition is 4 simultaneous users, whilst BP 2013 can support 9 concurrent users on Windows XP Pro and Windows Vista (Business and Ultimate editions).